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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND POLSER ENGINEERED COMPOSITE PANELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels
Private Limited (“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibllities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw your attention to note 37 of the financials which explains the uncertainties and management’s
assessment of the financial impact on the financial statement of the Company due to the lockdown and
other restrictions imposed by the Government of India and other conditions related to the COVID-19
pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment in the subsequent period is highly dependent
upon circumstances as they evolve,

Our opinicn is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud
or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaiuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controf that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those hooks.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant bocks of account.
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d)

e)

g}

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and cperating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controfs over financial reporting.

The provision of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigation which would affect its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There have been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government In terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 1104171

I -

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No.100892
UDIN:21100892AAAAKIGE57

Ahmedabad
May 14, 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private
Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of ARVIND POLSER
ENGINEERED COMPOSITE PANELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31,
2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects. ‘

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staterments in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417wW

O’{An,ﬂ—f d\"""I"’ k‘
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
May 14, 2021
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ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels
Private Limited of even date)

Vi,

vii.

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) The company has no immovable properties. Consequently, requirements of Clause (i)
{c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently, requirements
of clause (jii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
investment covered under section 185 or section 186 of the Act. Consequently, requirements
of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any depasits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s
product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi} of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and expianations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.



Arvind Polser Engineered Compaosite Panels Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Capital work-in-progress - 12,31,83,348
(b) Property, Plant , Equipment ) 12,68,09,655 -
(c) Intangible Agsets 6 1,08,41,778 2,52,97,482
(d) Intangible Assets under development G = =
{e) Right-of-use asset 5,85,21,355 6,97,85,364
{f) Other non-current assets 8 7,15,118 32,38,073
Total non-current assets 19,68,87,906 22,15,04,267
II.Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 15,87,922 36,84,278
(b) Financial assets
(iYTrade Receivable 7 (a) 1,23,02,790 31,89,734
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 (b) 40,74,914 14,21,549
{c} Other current assets 8 2,52,56,531 2,43,92,109
Total current assets 4,32,22,157 3,26,87,670
Total Assets 24,01,10,063 25,41,91,937
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 48,14,950 48,14,950
Other equity 11 7,54,99,524 10,66,87,175
Total equity 8,03,14,474 11,15,02,125
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial ltabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 6,45,39,444 6,98,19,367
{b) Long-term provisions 13 1,95,547 72,604
Total non-current liabilities 6,47,35,391 6,98,91,971
II.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 (a) 4,49,19,756 3,83,10,700
(ii) Lease Liabilities 52,79,936 42,43,961
{(iii) Trade payables 12 (b)
{a) Total outstanding dues of creditors micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b_} Total outs_tandmg dues of credltt_)rs other than 4,06,39,724 2,65,45,822
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv} Other financial liabilities 12 {c) 37,111,538 32,098,476
(b) Shart-term provisions 13 8,590 2,584
(c) Other current liabilities i4 5,00,654 4,85,298
Total current liabilities 9,50,60,198 7,27,97,841

Total equity and liabilities

24,01,10,063

25,41,91,937

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110417wW
£

C!,n(L Cﬂw—T*

Limited

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. Y
Partner R Director
Membership No. 100892 ( > DIN:

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021

gk o

¥

Place:Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private

b
Director
DIN:

Place: Ahmedahad
Date: May 14, 2021



Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amcunt in Rs.

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 3%, 2021 March 31, 2020
I. Income
Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products 15 2,21,69,897 8,16,259
Operating Income 15 5,10,946 (6,74,618)
Revenue from operations 2,26,80,843 1,41,641
Other income 16 - 100
Total income (I) 2,26,80,843 1,41,741
II. Expenses
Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed 17 1,22,77,755 -
Purchase of Stock in trade 18 39,16,643 47,46,273
Changes in inventories of Stock-in-trade 19 23,86,433 (36,84,278)
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 35,17,418 11,89,554
Depreciation 22 2,23,83,293
Finance costs 21 72,72,368 =
Other expenses 23 20,89,579 36,99,484
Total expenses (II) 5,38,43,489 59,51,033
IIi. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) {3,11,62,646} (58,09,292)
IV. Exceptional items . -
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-IV) (3,11,62,646) {58,09,292)
VI. Tax expense 24 - -
VII. Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (3,11,62,646) {58,09,292)
VIII. Other comprehensive income (25,005) -
IX. Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax
{VII+VIII) (3,11,87,651) (58,09,292)
X. Earning per equity share
Basic - Rs. 31 (64.77) (20.85)
Diluted - Rs. 31 (64.77) (20.85)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Scorab S. Engineer & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.110417W (g

0. AL ({Lvr—“? -

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Limited

L

P

W >

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private

Partner Ded
Membership No. 100892 { =
Place:Ahmedabad

Date: May 14, 2021

Director

DIN:
Place:Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021

&

Director

DIN;
Place:Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021



Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Cash Flow from Operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax (3,11,62,646) (58,09,292)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation fAmortization 2,23,83,293 ]
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost 72,72,368 -
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (15,06,985) (58,09,292)
Working Capital Changes:

Changes in Inventories 20,96,356 (36,84,278)
Changes in trade payables 1,40,93,902 2,65,10,354
Changes in ather Current liabilities 15,356 (37,56,984)
Changes in other Current financial liabilities 1,81,348 26,48,776
Changes in provisions 1,04,344 75,188
Changes in trade receivables (91,13,056) {31,89,734)
Changes In other Current assets (8,64,422) (2,43,92,109)
Changes in other Non-Current financial assets - {32,38,073)
Net Changes in Working Capital 65,13,828 {90,26,860)
Cash Generated from Operations 50,06,843 {1,48,36,152)
Direct Taxes paid {Net of Income Tax refund) n -
Net Cash from / {(used in) Operating Activities 50,06,843 {1,48,36,152)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment /Intangible assets {42,24,636) (9,61,86,300)
Changes in Capital Advances 25,22,955 -
Net cash flow from/ {used in) Investing Activities (17,01,681) {9,61,86,300)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceads from Issue of share capital - 47,14,950
Changes in Securities Premium - 11,31,58,800
Changes in Short Term Borrowings 66,09,056 27,10,700
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (24,43,304)

Principal Repayment of Lease Liability (48,17,549) (82,63,380)
Net Cash flow from/ {used in) Financing Activities (6,51,797) 11,23,21,070
Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 26,53,365 12,98,618
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 14,21,549 1,22,931
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the year 40,74,914 14,21,549

Figures in brackets indicate outflows.

Amount in Rs.
Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on Hand

40,74,914 14,21,549

Balances with Banks

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet {Note 7b) 40,74,914 14,21,549
Less: Book Overdraft

Cash and cash equivalents 40,74,914 14,21,549

Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
{as amended)

Particulars of liabilities arising from Note As at Net cash flows As at
financing activity No. April 1, 2020 March 31, 2021
Borrowings;

Shert term borrowings 12 (a) 3,83,10,700 66,09,056 4,49,19,756
Interest accrued on borrowings 12 (c) 29,76,298 3,20,714 32,97,012
Total 4,12,86,998 69,29,770 4,82,16,768
Particulars of liabilities arising from MNote As at Net cash flows As at
financing activity No. April 1, 2019 March 31, 2020
Borrowings:

Short term borrowings 12 (a) 3,56,00,000 27,10,700 3,83,10,700
Interest accrued on borrowings 12 (c) 5,60,700 24,15,598 29,76,298
Total 3,61,60,700 51,26,298 4,12,86,998
Notes:

1) The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private

Firm Registration No. 110417W Limited
©
= M/«é/
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. W v
Partner ik Director " N\~ Directer
Membership No. 100892 5% b ' DIN:

Place:Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021

Place:Ahmedabad
Date: May 14, 2021

Place:Ahmedakad
Date: May 14, 2021



Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equity share capital

Balance Amount in Rs.
Note 10

As at April 1, 2018 -

add : Issue of Equity Share capital 47,14,950

As at March 31, 2019 47,14,950

Add : Issue of Equity Share capital -

As at March 31, 2021 47,14,950

B. Other equity

Attributable to the equity holders
Reserves and Surplus

Particulars = = =
Retained Earnings Total Equity
Note 11
Balance as at April 1, 2019 {6,62,333) {6,62,333}
Profit/{Loss) for the year (58,09,292) (58,09,292)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year (58,09,292) ({58,09,292)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (64,71,625) (64,71,625)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 (64,71,625) (64,71,625)
Profit/(l.ass) for the year (3,11,62,646) (3,11,62,646)
Other comprehensive income for the year (25,005) (25,005)
Total Comprehensive income for the year (3,11,87,651) (3,11,87,651)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (3,76,59,276) {3,76,59,276)
See accampanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and en behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Firm Registration No.110417wW ; 5
M j L\,.——q' = MM W M
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B, 0z d‘ ,
Partner {)C}L Director P AT Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

Corporate Information

Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited ("the Company”) is a company
incorporated in India and has its registered office at Arvind Limited Premises, Naroda Road,
Ahmedabad - 380025 having CIN U25199GJ2018PTC105475. The Company is a Joint Venture
between Arvind Limited (60%) and Polser A.S, Turkey (40%) to manufacture Fibre Reinforced
Polymer sheets in India. The manufacturing facility equipped with European machines will be
located in Ahmedabad, india.

As part of the arrangement, Polser A.S will be placing one of its manufacturing machine in
India. Arvind Limited will be providing the JV with its land for setting up the manufacturing
facility. The JV will focus on preduction, marketing of the products to markets of India, Middle
East, South East Asla, Australia, New Zealand and other surrounding countries.

The joint venture will manufacture best-in-class products using European technology. The
products planned for production in the 1V includes ArpolLite (Translucent FRP Sheets), ArpoTuff
{Opaque FRP Sheets), ArpoSer (Economical Translucent Sheets), ArpoWall (FRP Flat Sheets),
ArpoBoard (FRP Insulated Flat Panels).

The major focus in the JV would be on Pre Engineered Buildings, Cooling Towers, Refrigerated
Trucks and products for Speciality Application like Refrigerated Trucks, Anti Microbial Panels
for Food Processing Plant and others.

The Company’s Financial Statements were approved by Board of Directors in the meeting held
on May 14, 2021.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for the certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified (“"the Act”).

Accounting policies were consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standards requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as
at March 31, 2021 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 {Ind AS compliant
schedule IIT) as applicable to financial statement.



2.2 Rounding of Amount

The Financials Statement are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) and all the values are rounded
to nearest rupee as per the requirement of Schedule III, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
Financial Statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
+ It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle
Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements
The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company

believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.



The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reparting date.

3.3.Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Business Combination under Common Contiol

A business combination involving entities or businesses under commen control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and the control is
not transitory. The transactions between entities under common control are specifically
covered by Ind AS 103. Such transactions are accounted for using the pooling-of-interest
method. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recognised at their carrying
amounts of the parent entity’s Financial Statements with the exception of certain income tax
and deferred tax assets. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any
new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting
policies. The components of equity of the acquired companies are added to the same
components within the Company's equity. The difference, if any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other
assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to other equity and is
presented separately from other capital reserves. The Company’s shares issued in
consideration for the acquired companies are recognized from the moment the acquired
companies are included in these financial statements and the financial statements of the
commonly conirolled entities would be combined, retrospectively, as if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest reporting period presented.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values, For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, the assets or liabilities related to er:;’}ployee benefit
arrangements and related to leases are recognised and measured in accordance with
Ind AS 12 Income Tax, Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits and Ind AS 116 Leases
respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.



> Assets (or disposal Companys) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss or QCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and ali of
the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annualiy,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.



Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within

“that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

2.4.Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’'s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on ftranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hadges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary tems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in QCI or profit or loss are alsc recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.5.Fair value measurement

‘The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:



¢« In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observabie inputs and minimising the use of unobservabie inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

e lLevel 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement Is directly or indirectly observable,

+ Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.



Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes

* Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.6.Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and [ease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of



domicile of the leases. Lease liahilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized con a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date;

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application;

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application;

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

3.7.Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

‘Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted



average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
3.8.Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisatiocn and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference betweean the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
Amortisation
Technical know how is amortised over the License Period.

3.9.Inventories

Inventories of Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

» Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.



Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of:completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable arnount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previcusly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.



3.11.Revenue Recognition

a)

b)

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typlcally
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods,

Variable consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the

amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resclved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable consideration.

i. Discounts
Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable

consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected vaiue
method. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds centained in the contract.

Contract balances

i. Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

il. Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideraticn
is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments
- initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

fii. Contract liahilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due {(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.



c) Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same,

3.12.Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset,

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
» Financial assets at amortised cost
* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
+ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

* Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

+ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:



- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVYTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is repeorted as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categerization as at amortized cost or as FVTQOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meels amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
s0 reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the P&L

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or



- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has-assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
ar

{b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest,

(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

= Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and
Ind AS 18



The Company follows simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on;
* Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

e« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 1lw=and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

« Right Of Use Assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, It recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
= All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
+ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instrumerits is described below:
e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and ROU
Assets: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the



-

net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liahilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, locans and
borrowings Including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative

financial instruments.

{(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

below:

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered inte by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recagnition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.
« Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR



method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii} Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability {(or a part of a financiai liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

¢} Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value cn the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as;
s Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or iiability or an unrecognised firm commitment
s Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management cbjective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged



item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributabie to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss aver the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable te the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributabte
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

(if)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.



d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liakilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liahilities simultaneously.

3.13.Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.14.Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current incomeé tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicabie tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.



Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, asscciates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.

3.15.Employee Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term



compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, employees’ state insurance fund
scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such
schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company's defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

c) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.16.Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.



The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.

3.17.Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probabie that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

3.18.Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.

3.19.Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that
arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are
not accounted but disclosed.



4. Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and, income
and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgements, estimates
and associated assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and various other
factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Management has considered the possible effects, if
any, that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its
assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and / or key sources
of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of ‘the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefi obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 29.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet’
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured

using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in



establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 33 for further disclosures,

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogenecus groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtfui debts is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil).

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil) of tax credits carried forward. The
Company also has Rs. 1,44,98,506/- (March 31, 2020: Rs. 57,34,104/-) of unused losses and
Rs. 5,23,22,498/- (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil) of unabsorbed depreciation available for
offsetting against future taxable income. However, Deferred tax assets have not been
recognized on the basis that recovery is not probable in the foreseeable future.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 24.

Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be
lower than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into
account various factors, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, the seasonality of
the item’s sales profile and losses associated with obsolete / slow-moving inventory items.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.9 for the estimated useful life of Intangibie assets.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on availahle data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’'s performance of the CGU being tested. The



recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future-cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the Companyhas a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows.

The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which
are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent
liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.

Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations
which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not
probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated
as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liahilities in the
Financial Statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the
legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies
will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability (Refer Note 25).

Lease Term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.
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Notes to the financial statement

Note 5 : Property, plant and equipment

Amount in Rs,

Fixed Assets

Leasehold land

Buildings

Plant &
machinary

Furniture &
fixture

Vehicles

Office
equipment

Computer,
server &
natwerl

Tatal

Gross Block
As at April 1, 2019
Additions

_Deductions
As at March 31, 2020

Additions
Other Adjustment

12,73,53,278
41,21,677

4,09,100

1,05,000

2,05,000

12,80,72,378
41,21,677

Deductions
As at March 31, 2021

13,14,74,955

4,09,100

1,05,000

2,05,000

13,21,94,055

Depraciation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2019
Depreciation for the year

Deductions
As at March 31, 2020

Depreciation for the year

Deductions

52,91,601

29,148

14,963

53,84,400

Az at March 31, 2021

52,91,601

29,148

14,963

53,84,400

Net Block

As at March 31, 2021

12,61,83,354

3,79,952

90,037

1,56,312

12,688,09,655

As at March 31, 2020

Notes :

t.Details of Borrowing Cost and Exchange Differences Capitalised in relation ko plant & machinery:

Other Adjustments
As At March 31, 2021 Az At March 31, 2020
Particulars Transter from .| Transfer from
For the year Capital Work In (A tg;}f:;r (in Capital Work in
Progress 3 Progress
Borrewing Cost 8,114,679 33,06,998 33,06,598 -
Total B,14,679 33,086,998 33,06,998 -




Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement

Note 6 : Intangible assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Technical Total Intangible
Knowhow under
Development
Gross Carrying Amount
As at April 1, 2019 - - 3,97,53,186
Additions 3,97,53,186 3,97,53,186 =
Deductions \ mmaas - 3,97,53,186
As at March 31, 2020 3,97,53,186 3,97,53,186 -
Additions - =
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2021 3,97,53,186 3,97,53,186 -
Amortisation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2019 - - -
Amortisation for the year 1,44,55,704 1,44,55,704 -
Deductions e = £
As at March 31, 2020 1,44,55,704 1,44,55,704 -
Amortisation for the year 1,44,55,704 1,44,55,704
Deductions - - =
As at March 31, 2021 2,89,11,408 2,89,11,408 -
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2021 1,08,41,778 1,08,41,778 -
As at March 31, 2020 2,52,97,482 2,52,97,482 -

Note:
During the year, amortisation of Rs.
has been capitalised.

36,13,926/-(Previous year Rs. 1,44,55,704/-)



Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statement

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Trade receivables - Current

Amount in Rs.

N As at As at
Paleuias March 31, 2021 _ March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good 1,23,02,790 31,89,734
Total Trade receivables 1,23,02,790 31,89,734

1. No trade receivables are due fram directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any person nor any trade

receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a director,

7 {b) Cash and cash equivalent

a partner or a member.

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance with Bank
In Current accounts

40,74,914 14,21,549
40,74,91% 14,721,535

Total cash and cash equivalents

7 (c} = Financial Assets by category

Amount In Rs.

Particiars FVoCI Amortised Cost

March 31, 2021 ]

Trade Receivables - 1,23,02,790

Cash & Bank balance = 40,74,514

Total Financlal Assets - 1,95,67,438

March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables = 31,89,734

Cash & Bank balance - 14,21,549
= 46,11,283

Total Financial Assets

For Flnancial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 35

Falr value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 33 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 34

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Non-current
Capital advances 7,15,118 32,38,073
7,15,118 32,38,073

Current

Advance to Supplier 7.27,520 10,45,880
Export Incentive receivable 1,31,482 57,356
Balance with Government Authorities (Refer Note below (i) 2,43,97,529 2,32,88,873
2,52,56,531 2,43,92,109
2,59,71,649 2,76,30,182

Jotal

(1) Balance with Government Authorities mainly consists of input credit availed,

Note 9 ; Inventorles (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Amount In Rs.

As at As at
agrnrs March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 _
Raw materials and components 2,580,077 -
Finished goods 12,97,845 -
Stock in trade - 36,84,278

7,92 4,27

otal




Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 10 ; Equity share capital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount in Rs.

As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Authaorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each {March 31, 2020 Rs.

10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each {March 31, 2020: Rs.

10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each (March 31, 2020: Rs.

10 each)

7,00,000 70,00,000

48,14,950

4,81,495

4,81,495 48,14,950

7.00,000 70,00,000

4,81,495

48,14,950

4,81,495 48,14,950

Total

4,81,495 48,14,550

4,811,495 48,14,950

10.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beainnina and at the end of the Reporting period

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount In Rs,

As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount in Rs.

At the beginning of the year
Add: Issue of Share Capltal
Outstanding at the end of the year

4,81,495 48,14,950

4,81,495 48,14,950

10,000 1,00,000
4,71,495 47,14,950
4,81,495 48,14,950

10.2. Rights.Preferences and Restrictions attached to the equity shares
The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder
shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directars is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meetina. In the event of liquidation, the equlty shareholders
are eligible to receive the remalning assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to

their shareholding.

10.3. shares held by Hoiding Companv

Name of the Sharehoider

As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount in Rs.

As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Helding Company - Arvind Limited

2,88,897 28,88,970

2,88,897 28,88,970

10.4. Details of shareholder{s} holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31, 2020

Name of the Sharcholder % of : % of

No. of shares shareholding No. of shares T AL
Holding Company - Arvind Limited 2,88,897 60% 2,88,897 100%
POLSER SEFFAF 1,92,598 40% 1,92,598 -

10.5. Obiective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 36



Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Other Equity

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Securities Premium
Balance as per last financial statements
Addition during year
Bafance at the end of the year

Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Add / (Less): OCI for the year

11,31,58,800 s

= 11,31,58,800
11,31,58,800 11,31,58,800
(64,71,625) (6,62,333)

(3,11,62,646)
(25,005)

(58,09,292)

Balance at the end of the year {3,76,59,276) (64,71,625)
Total reserves & surplus 7,54,99,524 10,66,87,175
Total Other equity 7,54,99,524 10,66,87,175
Note 12 : Financial liabilities
12 {a) Shert-term Borrdwings

Amount in Rs.
As at As at =

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Unsecured: (refer (i} befow)
Intercorporate Deposits

From Related Parties 4.4%,19,756 3,83,10,700
Total 4,49,19,756 3,83,10,700
Rate Of Interest
(i) Inter Corporate Deposits carry interest rates 8.75% per annum (March 31, 2020 8.75%)
12 (b) Trade payables
Aimnmount in Rs.
. As at As at ]
I March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cuirrent

Other Trade Payables (Refer Note below)
~Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Total cutstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,06,39,724 2,65,45,822

Total 4,06,39,724 2,65,45,822

The Company does not have any dues to suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 and hence disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED} Act, 2006 regarding:

{(a} Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year;

(b} Interest paid during the year;

(c) Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appoinked day during accounting year;

(d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment;

(e) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

(f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
is not required.

12 (c) Other financial liabilities
Amount in Rs.

b ; As at As at

Fafficiscs March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current

Interest Accrued 32,97,012 29,76,298

Payable to employees 4,14,526 2,33,178
Total 37,11,538 32,009,476
12 (d) : Financial Liabilities by category
Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

March 31, 2021

Borrowings = = 4,49,19,756

Lease Liabilities - - 6,58,19,380
Trade payables - - 4,06,39,724
Interest Accrued - = 32,97,012
Payable to employees - - 4,114,526

5 = 15,90,90,398

Tojal Financial liabilities

/(:‘




Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2020
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables
Interest Accrued
Payable to employees

3,83,10,700
7,40,63,328
2,65,45,822
29,76,298
2,33,178

Total Financial liabilities

14,21,29,326

Fer Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 35

Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 33 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 34

Note 13: Provisions

Amount in Rs.

As at

As at

AT March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 29)
Provision for leave encashment 91,313 36,494
Provision for Gratuity 1,04,634 36,110
1,985,947 72,604
Short-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 29)
Pravision for leave encashment 8,434 2,522
Provision for Gratuity 156 62
8,590 2,584
Total 2,04,537 75,188

Note 14 : Other current / Non-current liabilities

Amount in Rs.

2 As at As at
pariistiacy March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current

Statutory dues including tax deducted at source 4,897,093 4,78,849

Other liabilities 3,561 6,449
Total 5,040,654 4,85,298




Arvind Polser Enginesred Composite Panels Private Limited
Notes ta the Financial Statements

Note 15 : Revenue from Operations

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sale of Praducts 2,21,69,897 8,16,259
Qperating Incorme
Exchange Difference (net) 4,36,820 (6,74,618)
Export Incentives 74,126
ngl 2!25530_,843 %
1, Disaggregation of revenus Arount In Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 33, X021 March 3%, 2020
A. Ravenue based on Geography
I, Domestic 1,55,37,407 -
H. Expart 71,43,436 141,641
2,26,80,843 1,41,641
B. Revenue based on Business Segmant
Traded Goods 4,26,80,843 1,41,641
IL. Reconciifation of Revenue from Oparation with Contract Price Amount in Rs.
Particulars : Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2020 .
Revenue from contract with customers as per the conkract price 2,26,80,843 141,641
Adjustments made to contract price on account of :

a) Sales Retum - B
Total Revenue from Operations 2,26,80,843 1,941,641
Note 16 : Other income

Arnount in Rs.
: Year Ended Year Ended ]
b March 31, 2021 March 81, 2020
Miscellaneous income - 1on
el 3 o7
Note 17 : Cost of raw fals and aci ies consumed
- Amount in Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 202% March 31, 2020
Inventory at the beginning of the year - =
Add : Purchases during the year 1,25,67,832
1,25,67,832-
Less : Inventory at the end of tihe year 2,890,077 =
Raw materlals and accessorles consumed 1,22,77,755 3
Total 1,22,77,755 -
Note 1% : Purchases of steck=in-trade
- : Amount In Rs.
Parteulars Year Ended Year Ended i
Purchasa of Stock in rade 39,186,643 47,46,273
Tofal 39,12,543 47.4_5&
Note 12 : Chanaes in inventories of stock-in-trade :
Amgunt In Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended i
Inventories at the end of the vear
Finished goods 12,97,845 -
Stock-In-trade =
12,97,845 35,284,278
Inventoiles at tha beainnina of the vear
Stock-In-trade 36,84,278 -
36,84,278- -
In ac in 23,86,433 (36,84 278)

Note 20 : Employas Banefit Expenses

Amount in Rs.
Ended |

Particulsrs Yaar Ended Year

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salarles, wages, bonus, commisslon, etc. {Refer Note 29) 3i,21,398 10,66,887
Caontribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 29} 3,18,612 71,533
Welfare and tralning expenses 77,408 51,084
Jotal 3517418 11,89 554



Note 21 : Financa costs
Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars

Interest Expenses on

- On Loan Uability 27,49,659 =
= On Lease Liability 45,08,350 -
- Others 14,359 -
atal 73,73368 E
Note 22 : Depraciation & Amartisation
Ameount In Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciaion on

Property Plant and Equipment 53,84,400 =
Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets €1,57,115 -
Intengibie Assets 1,08,41,778 -
Total 2,23.83,293 -
Jotal Srenieed
Mote 23 : Other Expenses
Amount In Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 20231 March 31, 2020 .
Bullding Repairs - 120
Machinery / Plant Repalrs 41,805 =
Frelght, Insurance & Clearing Charges 13,870 6,700
Rent (Refer Note 32} 17,848 5
Auditors Remuneration (Refer Nota a below) 28,080 52,400
Printing & Statlonery & Communication Exp 736 9,522
Rates & Taxes 21,852 9,95,147
Conveyance & Traveliing Exps 11,893,707 22,06,979
Legal Fees B Expenses 1,69,055 1,98,273
Bank Charges 28,745 44,749
Miscellaneous Labour Charges 1,17,758 1,12,464
Penalty 1,077 -
Other Expenses 4,54, 996 62,730
Total 20,89,579 36!995454
2. Break up of Auditor's Remuneration Amount in Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
Pt g March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Payment to Auditors as :
Auditors 28,090 25,000
For pther certification work - 37,400
Total 48,090 62,400
Note 24 - A: Income Tax
Amount In Rs.
Year Ended Year Ended
S March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total : 5 3
Note 24 - B ¢ Deferred Tax
Amount fn Rs.
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2021 March 31, 3020
(84,45,422)

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes -
Expendfiure allowable on pavment basls/ over the nerod . 53,180 B
Impact of Ind AS 116 - Leases 20,37,487 =
Unused losses avaflable for offsetting aaatnst future taxable Income* 54,54,755 =

G T X as: a es
* to the extent of Deferred tax liability.

The Company has unused tax losses amounting to Rs. 1,44,88,506/- and unabsoerbed depraciation amounting to Rs.
5.23.22.498/- as at March 31. 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 57,34,104/- and Rs. NII). These tax credits on losses have not
been receanised.on the basis that recovery [s nat probable in the for ble future. Unrec Ised tax losses will expire
on March 31, 2029. If unutilized. based an the vear of origlnation.




Arvind Poiser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Contingent liabilities
_Amount in Rs.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Contingent liabilities not provided for

Note 26 : Capital commitment and other commitments
Amount in Rs.

A As at As at
g e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be - N
executed on capital account and not provided for

Other commitments

Note 27 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

A. Foreign Exchange Derivatives
As at March 31, 2021 NIL
As at March 31, 2020 NIL

B. Exposure Not Hedged .
Nature of exposure f_'“s';c Amount in Rs.

Receivables
As at March 31, 2021 = =
As at March 31, 2020 27,080 20,49,032

Note 28 : Segment Reporting

Identification of Seaments:

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business seament separately for the
purpose of making decision about resource allgcation and performance assessment. Seament performance is
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.
Operatina seament have been identified on the basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria
specified in the Ind AS 108. Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM") of the company.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Pre Engineered Buildings, Cooling Towers, Refrigerated
Trucks and products for Speciality Application like Refrigerated Trucks, Anti Microbial Panels for Food
Processing Plant and others, which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 on Segment Reporting,
constitutes a single reportable primary (business) segment.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.
Amount in Rs.

= ear Ef Year Ende
FatieRiars Pk 312‘-';:21 Maeh 3 o0 |
Seament Revenue*
a) In India 1,55,37,407 1,41,641
b} Rest of the world - 71,43,436 5
Total Sales 2,26,80,843 1,41,641
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) In India 24,01,10,063 25,21,42,905
b) Rest of the world - 20,49,032
Total 24,01,10,063 25,41,91,937
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets
a) In India 19,68,87,906 22,15,04,267
b} Rest of the world - 5
Total 19,68,87,906 22,15,04,267

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Assets

Note:
c. Information about major customers:
Considering the nature of business of company in which it operates, the company deals with various customers

including multiple geographics. There are two (3) customers contributing Rs. 78,17,008/- {March 31, 2020 : Nil)
of the total revenue of the company from export sale and demestic sale.

post Y
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Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 : Related Party Transactions

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24), the related
parties of the Company are as follows :

a Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship
Holding Company
Arvind Limited

Associate Company
POLSER KOMPQZIT URUNLER SANAYI VE T.A.S. (Formerly known as POLSER SEFFAF CATI

ORTULERI SANAYTI)

Director

Mr. Punit S. Lalbhai

Mr. Ashishkumar H. Srivastava
Mr. Ahmet Cinar

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

b Transactions with related parties
Amount in Rs.

Portlonloiees Holding Associate
Company Company

Purchase of Goods and Materials

March 31, 2021 - 39,16,643

March 31, 2020 47,46,273 =

Purchase of Goods and Materials (Transferred to CWIP)

March 31, 2021 2 =

March 31, 2020 56,78,495 -

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

March 31, 2021 8,65,812 -

March 31, 2020 = 5,27,83,658

Sales of Goods and Materials (Transferred to CWIP)

March 31, 2021 - -

March 31, 2020 2,97,723 =

Sales of Goods and Materials
March 31, 2021 31,29,589 22,46,240

March 31, 2020 - -

Rent Expense (Transferred to CWIP) ‘
March 31, 2021 25,37,518
March 31, 2020 49,58,028 =

Rent Expense
March 31, 2021 48,35,397
March 31, 2020 -

Interest Expense (Transferred to CWIP)
March 31, 2021 8,14,679 -
March 31, 2020 33,06,998 -

Interest Expense
March 31, 2021 ' 27,49,659 =
March 31, 2020 -




Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Manpower Services Received
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

Loan Taken/(Repayment of Loan) (Net)
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

Issue of Shares (Including Securities Premium)
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

5,76,001

66,09,056
27,10,700

6,97,24,250

4,81,49,500

Amount in Rs.

Balances
Particulars Holding Associate
Company Company
Trade and Other Receivable
March 31, 2021 40,87,842 -
March 31, 2020 3,459,546 -
Trade and Other Payvable
March 31, 2021 3,26,00,614 -
Maich 31, 2020 2,18,34,640 51,931
Pavable in respect of Loans
4,49,19,756 -

March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

3,83,10,700

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1) Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances other than loan taken at the year-end

are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

2) Loans taken from the related party carries interest rate 8.75% (March 31, 2020 : 8.75%)

Commitments with related parties

The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil)




Arvind Polser Engineered Composite Panels Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 31 : Earning per share
Amount in Rs.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders {3,11,87,651) {58,09,292)
Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 4,81,495 4,81,495
Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS 4,81,495 2,78,688

For diluted EPS 4,81,495 2,78,688
Nominal value of equity shares 10 10
Basic earning per share (64.77) {20.85)
Diluted earning per share (64.77) {20.85)

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 4,81,495 2,78,688
tffect of dilution - =
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of

dilution 4,81,495 2,78,688
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Note 32 : Leases

The Company has taken Building on lease period of 9 years with option of renewal.

Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Building) Amount in Rs.
¥ Year Ended Year Ended
Earticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the period 6,97,85,364 -
Reclassification on account of adoption of Ind AS 116

Additions - 7,69,20,643
Deletions {29,78,007) -
Depreciation ’ (82,86,002) {71,35,279)

Balance at the end of the period 5,85,21,355 6.97,85,364

Movement in lease liabilities Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended

Raolas. : ‘March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the period 7,40,63,328
Additions - 7,69,20,643
Deletions {55,06,601) =
Finance cost accrued during the period 60,80,202 54,06,065
Payment of lease liabilities (48,17,549) (82,63,380)
Balance at the end of the period 6,98,19,380 7,40,63,328
Current 52,779,936 42,443,961
Non-current : 6,45,39,444 6,98,19,367
Contractual maturities of lease liabilities Amount in Rs.
: Year Ended Year Ended
gt ST March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Less than one year 52,79,936 42,43,961
One to five years 3,43,36,332 2,87,19,417
More than five years 3,02,03,112 4,10,99,950
Total 6,98,19,380 7,40,63,328

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as
the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liahilities as and

when they fall due.

The Company incurred Rs. 17,848/- for the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil)
towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
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Note 33 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:
Amount in Rs.

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Carrying Amount 4,49,19,756 3,83,10,70C
Fair Value 4,49,19,756 3,83,10,700

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used o estimate the fair values:

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabifities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take into account when
For financlal assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrving amounts are equal to the fair values.

Note 34 : Fair value hierarchyvy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's liabilities

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021
Amount in Rs.

Fair value measurement using

N o Significant
5 Quoted prices in Significant observable
Date of valuation Total e R T inputs unn:‘se;:sable
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Le":e! a5
Liabilities disclosed at fair value
Borrowings 31st March, 2021 4,49,19,756 - 4,49,19,756 -
31st March, 2020 3,83,10,700 - 3,83,10,700 -

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The

fair vafue of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reparting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based an observable market data, the instrumant is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

There are no transfer between ievel 1, 2 and 3 during the vear.
The Company’s pelicy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
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Note 33 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principai financlal labilities, other than derlvatives, comprise borrowings and trade & other payables, The main purpose of these financial liakilities is ta financa the
Company's pperativns and to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include Investments, loans given, trade and other receivables and cash & short-term
deposits that derive directly from its operatiens.

The Cormpany's activities expose k to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the company, derivative

financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracis are entered to hadga certain foreign currency exposures and interest rate swaps to
hadge certain variable Interast rate exposures. Dervatives are used exclusively for hedging purpeses and not as frading / speculative instriuments.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by 2 Treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directors. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-eperation with the Company's operating units. The board pravides writtan principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financlal instruments znd non-derivative financial instrumeants, and-investment of excess liquidity.

(a} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair vafua of future cash flows of a finandial iastrizment wil fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk cornprisas three types of risk:

interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commwdity risk. Financlal instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits,
Investments, trade and other recaivables, trade and other payables and darivative financial instruments.

Within the various methodologies to analyse and manage risk, Company has Implemented a system basad on “sensitivity analysls” cn symmetric basis. This toel enables the risk
managers o ldentify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate guantification of the expasure in the event that certain specified parameters wera Lo

be met under a specific set of assumptions. The risk estimates provided hare assume:

- a parallel shift of 50-basis points of tha interest rate yield curves in ail currencies,

- a simultangous, parallel foraign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciatas / depreciates against al! currencies by 2%

- 10% increase / decrease In equity prices of all investments traded In an active market, which are classified as financia! asset measyrad at FYOCL.

The potential aconomic Impact, due te these assumptions, is basad on the eccurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changas resulting from the
sansitivity analysis. Actual rasults that are inciuded in the Staternent of profit & loss may differ matariaily from these estimates due to actuzl developments in the global financial

The znalyses exclude the impact of movemants i market variables on: the carrying vatues of gratuily, pension and cthar post-ratirement obligations and provisions,

Tha followlng assumption: has been made in calculating the sensitivity znalyses:
= The sansitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in raspective market risks. This is basad an the financial

liabilities hald at March 31, 2021,

assets and financiat

- Tha sensitivity of equity Is calcuiated by considering the effect of any assaciated cash flow hedges as at March 31, 2021 for the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying risk

Interast rate risk t
Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilitias to changes in market rates of interest, The Company has not hedaed its interast

rata rigk,
As at March 31, 2021. 100% (March 31. 2020 100%! of the Companv's Barrowines are at fixed rata of interest.

Foreign currency risk
Fareign cumency risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company transacts business in

lacal currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has obtained foraign currency loans and has foraign currency trade payables and receivables etc, and is,
therefore, expesed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts, forgign exchange ontions or currancy swaps towards herdging risk resulting frem changes and
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upon the primary host contract

reguirements and risk management strategy of the Company.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging aparepriata parcantage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per estavlished risk management poiicy.

Details of the hedge & unhedged position of the Company given In Note 27.

Foreign currency sensltivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change in USD rates to the functional currency of raspective entity, with all other variables held constant. The

Company's exposura te foreign currancy changes for all cther turrencies is not material. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is dus te changes in the fair value of menetary
assets and liabilities. The Impact on the Company’s pre-tax equity is due ta changes in the fair value of foreign currency monetary items designated as cash fow hedge,

Amount [n Rs.
' Effecton profit|
Particulars Change In USD rate betoro s e
March 31, 2021 +2% S
29, o
March 31, 2020 +2% 40,581
2%, (40,981)

Althaugh the finandial instrurments have not beer deslgnated in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the uaderlying transactions when thay cceur.

(h) CredIt risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer centract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit

risk from Its cperating activities (primarily trade receivables} and from its financing aclivities, inciuding depesits with banks, foraign aexchange transactions and other financial
instruments,

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordante with the Company's policy, Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties wha meets the minimum threshold requirements undar the counterparty risk assessment process. The Company monitars the
ratings, credlt spreads and finangial strength of its counterparties. Based cn its on-geing assessment of counterparty risk, the group adjusts its exposure to various counterpartias. The
Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balanca sheet as of March 31, 2021 is the carrying amount as disclosad in Note 33,

{c) Licuidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and coliateral obllgatians without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective

is %o, at all Himes maintaln optimum levels of quidity to meet its cash and collataral raquirements, The Company closely manitors its liguidity position and deploys a robust cash
management; systemr. It maintalns adequate sources of financing including bitsteral loans, debt and overdraft from domastic banks at an optimised cost. It also enjoys Strong access to

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
Amount In Rs.

Particulars Eess than I year L !‘:::r:ﬂ & 3 years to 5 years After 5 years Total

Year ended March 31, 2021

Interest bearing borrowings 4,49,19,756 - - - 4,49,19,756

Lease Liabllitias 52,79,936 1,48,56,747 1,94,79,585 3.02,03,112 6,88,1%,380

Trade payables 4,06,39,724 - - - 4,06,35,724

Other flnancial liabilities# 37,11 538 = = = 37,11,538
9,45,50,054 - - - -

Year ended March 31, 2020

Interest bearing borrowings 3,83,10,700 - - . 3,83,10,700

Lease Liabllitias 42,43,961 1,17,28,275 1,69,91,142 4,10,99,850 7.40,63,328

Trada payables 2,55,45,822 - - - 2,65,45,822

Cther financial liabilities# 32,09,476 = - = 32,09,476
7,23,09,959 1,17,28,275 $,69,91,142 4,10,99,950 14,21,29,326

# Other financial liabiiitigs Includes interest accrued but not due of Rs. 32,97,013/- (March 31, 2020; Rs. 28,76,298/-).
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Note 36: Capital management
For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capitai includes issued 2quity capital and all ather equity reserves altributable to the equity hoiders of the Company. The

primary objective of the Company’s capital management Is to ensure that It maintains an efficent capitai structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shargholder valua.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in lght of changes in ecanamic conditions or its business ‘equirements ta optimise return to our sharsholders
through centinuing growth. To maintain or adjust the capita! structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital te sharsholders or issue new
shares. The funding requirements are met threugh a mixture of aquity, internal fund generaticn and other non-current borrewings, The Cempany menitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which Is net debt divided by total capitai plus net debt. The Comipany fncludes within net debt, interest bearing foans and borrowings less cash and short-tarm deposits {including other

bank batance), The Company is not subject to any externaily imposed capital reguirements.

Amount in Rs,
Year ended March ~ Year ended March 31, !

Particars 31, 2021 2020
Interest-bearing (nans and kborrowings (Note 4,43,19,756 3,83,10,700
12}

Less: cash and cash equivaient (including (40,74,914) (14,21, 549)
cther bank balance) {Note 758)

Nat dabt 4,0B,44,842 3,68,89,151
Equity share capital (Nota 10) 48,114,950 48,14,550
Other Equity {Note 11} 7,54,99,524 10,66.87,175
Total capital - 8,03,14,474 11,i5,02,125
Capital and net debt 12,11,59,316 14,83,01,276
Gearing ratio 33.71% 24,.86%

In order to achieve this overall cbjective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that It maets financial covenants attachad to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requiremants, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would parmit the bank to fmmediately call loans and borrowings. There
have heen ne breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were mada in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021.

Loan covenants
Under the tarmis of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the required financial covenants through out the reparting periods.
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Note 37 : Note on COVID -19

World Health Organisation (WHOQ) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19} a global pandemic on March 11, 2029,
Consequent to this, Government of India declared lockdown on March 23, 2020 and the Company temporarily suspended the
operations in all the units of the Company in campliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the Central and State
Governments. COVID-19 has substantially impacted the nermal business operations of the Company by way of interruption in
production, supply chain disruption, unavailability of persannel, closure/lock down of production facilities etc. during the

lock-down period which has been extended till May 17, 2020. Production and supply of goods has commenced at various dates
during the month of May 2020 and in a staggerad manner durfng the year at some of the manufacturing locations of the Company
after obtalning permissions from the appropriate government authorities. The Company has witnessed significant improvement in its
operations during the second half of the year. Nearer to the year end, the operations of the Company were affected by the impact of

the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic.

The situation Is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertalnty around the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the
COVID- 19 on revenue from operations, profitability, recoverabiiity of Property Plant and Equipment, investments and trade
receivables.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next 12 months, recoverability of Its assets comprising
of Property Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets, Investments, inventories and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of
future economic conditions and estimates made by the Management of the Company, the Company expects to recover the carrying

amount of these assets,

As a result of the growing uncertainties with respect to COVID- 19, the impact of this pandemic may be different from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to

future economic conditions.
Note 38 : Code on Social Securities, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
recefved Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazzete of
India. However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not been notified, The Company will access the impact of the .
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the peried the code becomes effective.

Note 39 : New Accounting Pronouncements to be adapted on or after March 31, 2021

There are no standards or interpretations which are notified but not yet effective and that would be expected to have a materia!
frApact on the Company In the current or future reporting periods.

Note 40 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified

Material regroupings: Appropriate adjustments have been made In the statements of assets and labilities, statement of profit and
loss and cash flows, wherever required, by a reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and
cash fiows in order to bring them in line with the groupings as per the audited financials of the Company as at March 31, 2021,

prepared in accordance with Schedule IIT of Companies Act 2013,



